# SCHOOL DISTRICT OF PHILADELPHIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION SERVICES

## **NON-BUS VEHICLE USAGE**

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES
FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS
FUEL SITE LOCATIONS

# School District of Philadelphia Department of Transportation Services

### **Non-Bus Vehicle Usage Policies and Procedures**

#### STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

This document sets forth policies and procedures governing vehicle usage, assignment, parking, worker safety and the safety of the driving public, Global Positioning System ("GPS") monitoring of the vehicles and other fleet management related issues. Going forward, these policies and procedures are controlling and shall apply to all non-bus fleet operated by The School District of Philadelphia ("District" or "School District" or "SDP") personnel. This Directive supersedes all past policies and procedures pertaining to vehicle usage. All references to "departments" in this Directive shall include agencies and other units of The School District to which vehicles are assigned. All references to "District vehicles" shall include vehicles that are owned, rented, or leased by the District and operated by District employees in the course of official business.

#### **GOALS**

These policies are intended to improve and streamline fleet management practices, enhance accountability for vehicle usage, contain the size of the District's fleet, decrease environmental impact, contain or reduce fleet-related expenditures, and promote the uniform, efficient, safe and ethical use of the District's fleet.

#### POLICY 711: USE OF SCHOOL DISTRICT VEHICLES

Originally Adopted on 11/10/1986 Updated and Approved on 6/21/2018

#### Purpose

The School District of Philadelphia shall provide vehicles to certain employees for the purpose of performing job related duties in an efficient and economical manner.

#### **Mandatory Regulatory Guidelines**

Only those personnel designated by the Superintendent shall be permitted use of School District vehicles.

Such vehicles are to be used only for the performance of job related duties and responsibilities and for no other reason except for commuting to employment site.

The official designated by the Superintendent as being in charge of the program shall:

- 1. Maintain an inventory of vehicles allocated to personnel designated by the
- 2. Superintendent.
- 3. Provide full instruction to employees so designated regarding use of vehicles, methods of obtaining fuel and service, and personal responsibilities in such matters as parking violations.
- 4. Prepare, distribute and maintain Administrative Bulletins essential to the program.
- 5. Ensure compliance with relevant federal and state law.
- 6. Evaluate effectiveness of the program and prepare necessary reports for the Superintendent.

All employees authorized to use the vehicles shall be responsible for:

- 1. Obeying all laws and regulations governing vehicle operations.
- 2. Taking reasonable precautions to protect the vehicle.
- 3. Reporting all violations of the Motor Vehicle Code, including parking violations and
- 4. Assuming financial responsibility for these violations.
- 5. Reporting all accidents or damage to the vehicles including submitting a written report to the official designated by the Superintendent.

#### Discipline

Failure to adhere to these mandatory guidelines and this policy's administrative procedures may result in discipline.

#### **Delegation of Responsibility**

The Superintendent or designee shall implement administrative procedures for the use of School District Vehicles. The Superintendent or designee shall designate those positions requiring allotment of vehicles.

### **Table of Contents**

Sections		Page
1	Department of Transportation Services (Transportation) Responsibilities	3
2	Chief Operating Officer (COO) Responsibilities	3
3	Departmental Responsibilities	4
4	Individual Responsibilities	5
5	Transportation Alternatives	6
6	General Guidelines for Using District Vehicles	7
7	Authorization and Requirements to Operate Vehicles and Equipment	7
8	Accidents Involving District-Owned Vehicles	9
9	Vehicle Tracking System (GPS)	11
10	Rules for Disposition of Parking Tickets	12
11	Rules for Red Light Photo Violations	12
12	Toll Road Violations	12
13	Take Home Vehicle Assignment and Guidance	13
14	Prioritization of Vehicle Acquisitions, Maintenance & Relinquishments	14
15	Disciplinary Action	15

#### 1. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION SERVICES (TRANSPORTATION) RESPONSIBILITIES

- 1.1 It is the responsibility of the Department of Transportation Services ("Transportation") to meet daily operational needs at an aggregate level, defined by service level agreements between Transportation and user departments. Individual departments are accountable for allocation, prioritization, and optimization of vehicle resources within their departments.
- 1.2 Within the framework of an authorized annual purchasing plan, Transportation is responsible for vehicle acquisitions and relinquishments. Relinquishment decisions are based on a cost-benefit analysis, with appropriate communication to the affected department. The annual district-wide budget process will determine expenditures for fleet acquisitions and maintenance. Annual acquisitions will be prioritized in furtherance of the District's goals and operational needs.
- 1.3 Transportation reviews and approves or denies requests for additional vehicles in accordance with these policies and procedures. Departments may appeal Transportation's decisions to their respective Cabinet member.
- 1.4 Transportation will be responsible for maintaining the Master Vehicle List.
- 1.5 Transportation will conduct a monthly review of current and past-due traffic and parking violations incurred by the departments and will notify those departments of any outstanding violations incurred by District vehicles assigned to them.
- 1.6 Transportation, in consultation with the COO, enforces adherence to fleet operational procedures and, in coordination with the COO, is responsible for all related fleet and vehicle policy development.
- 1.7 Transportation, under supervision of the COO, will administer the take-home vehicle program.
- 1.8 Transportation oversees the utilization and optimization of the District's fleet.
- 1.9 Transportation, under supervision of the COO, enforces adherence to fleet operational procedures and is responsible for all related policy development.
- 1.10 Transportation is responsible to ensure that all employees in the take-home vehicle program submit Payroll Deductions for Employees Using School District Vehicles for Commuting forms to the District's Central Payroll Department to comply with IRS guidelines on the reporting of taxable fringe benefits.

#### 2. CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER (COO) RESPONSIBILITIES

- 2.1 The Chief Operating Officer ("COO") is the final arbiter on all matters related to the interpretation and implementation of these policies and procedures.
- 2.2 The COO, in coordination with the Transportation and the Office of Budget and Management, will determine total annual financial expenditure for vehicle acquisitions.
- 2.3 The Take-Home Vehicle Assignment program may be terminated at any time. The program is at the discretion of the COO, unless collectively bargained, and is not subject to any grievance procedures.

#### 3. DEPARTMENTAL RESPONSIBILITIES

- 3.1 Departments are responsible for deploying and managing the vehicles and equipment assigned to them on a daily basis. Each department shall maintain an emergency response plan to ensure adequate emergency coverage and appropriate vehicle use.
- 3.2 Insurance and legal matters related to vehicles are handled by the Office of Risk Management and the Office of General Counsel.
- 3.3 Violations: Departments are responsible for promoting and enforcing compliance with this Directive at the employee level. Each department head is responsible for tracking and ensuring the timely adjudication of all moving/parking violations incurred by their employees while operating District vehicles.
  - 3.3.1 Departments are responsible for ensuring that employees are held accountable for paying any parking tickets or traffic violations incurred while operating a District vehicle.
  - 3.3.2 Departments are responsible for ensuring that employees settle any toll violations incurred while operating District vehicles.
  - 3.3.3 Departments are responsible for reporting to the Office of Inspector General potential criminal offenses by District employees while operating District vehicles.
  - 3.3.4 Maintaining Updated Records: Each department is responsible for maintaining and updating records on vehicle usage and assignments to ensure that these records are always accurate.
  - 3.3.5 Department heads are required to comply with the Department of Transportation's annual "all-call" and have their employees complete a vehicle verification form, and submit this form to Transportation annually in July.
  - 3.3.6 Each department is responsible for notifying Transportation of any assignments or changes to assignments within 24 hours.
  - 3.3.7 Each department is responsible for updating and maintaining temporary or permanent vehicle assignment changes in the GPS system.
- 3.4 Take-Home Vehicles: Departments are responsible for take home vehicle assignments, subject to the approval of both the department head and the General Manager of Transportation Services. Departments are responsible for developing and implementing the criteria for take home vehicle assignments based on operating needs. The department must submit an Annual Vehicle Use Authorization Form to the Department of Transportation Services. The approved forms will be retained in the Transportation Department. The Take-Home Vehicles privilege can be used only between the employee's permanent primary residence and work location.
- 3.5 Fleet Liaisons: Each department shall appoint a Fleet Liaison, responsible for the management of District vehicles in use by that department. Each department shall provide the name and contact information of its designated Fleet Liaison to Transportation. Departmental Fleet Liaisons shall:
  - 3.5.1 Work with Transportation to ensure that adequate and updated records of use, condition, and infraction of District vehicles are maintained.

- 3.5.2 Ensure that records of use and custody for each pool vehicle are maintained. Such records must be able to identify the individual responsible for operating the vehicle at any given time, and must be furnished to Transportation upon request.
- 3.5.3 Maintain copies of the driver's licenses, take home privileges, and all operational records of all departmental employees authorized to operate a vehicle.
- 3.5.4 Distribute copies of this Directive to all employees using District vehicles, and obtain the written acknowledgement of each employee that they have received the Directive by obtaining the employee's signature on the final page of this Directive and retaining the signed page on file in either scanned electronic or paper format.
- 3.5.5 Ensure vehicular accident information is submitted to the Office of General Counsel in a timely manner.
- 3.6 Departments may initiate procurement of vehicle purchases utilizing operating funds, grant funds, or capital funds, only with the prior approval of Transportation. Any grant agreement involving vehicle purchases shall be approved by Transportation and coordinated with the District's Grant Compliance Office upon execution of the grant agreement.

#### 4. INDIVIDUAL RESPONSIBILITIES

- 4.1 Employees must read and adhere to this Directive and any other vehicle policies. Employees shall contact their departmental fleet liaison or Transportation with any questions regarding the terms and conditions of this Directive.
- 4.2 Employees must comply with applicable state and local driving laws, parking regulations, and District safety policies.
- 4.3 Employees must drive in a safe manner at all times, in accordance with road conditions especially during inclement weather.
- 4.4 Drivers and all passengers must wear seat belts at all times while the vehicle is in motion.
- 4.5 Drivers are required to use hands-free cell phone devices while operating District vehicles. Otherwise, drivers may not use cell phones for any purpose (call, text, data, etc.) while the vehicle is in operation.
- 4.6 Under no circumstances may any employee or other occupant of a District vehicle purchase, carry, imbibe any form of alcoholic beverage or controlled drug substances while using or occupying a District vehicle, or drive or occupy a District vehicle while under the influence of alcohol or controlled drug substances. With a valid prescription, an employee or other occupant of a vehicle may carry a controlled substance within a District vehicle.
- 4.7 Drivers are personally responsible and liable for any citations and/or violations received while operating a District vehicle. Failure to promptly respond to any citations/violations may result in disciplinary action and/or a loss of District vehicle use privileges.
- 4.8 Employees are required to immediately report to their supervisors and the departmental fleet liaison any tickets or citations for stationary, parking or moving violations received while operating a District owned, leased

or rented vehicle, or a personal vehicle while conducting District business.

- 4.9 For employees required to drive or maintain a District vehicle, employees must possess a proper driver's license classification, and any necessary endorsements/restrictions, to lawfully operate the assigned vehicle. Furthermore, as part of their official duties, driving record convictions may be considered as grounds for disciplinary actions up to and including termination whether infractions incurred while conducting District business or outside of work.
- 4.10 Employees required to use vehicle to conduct District business must notify their immediate supervisors and departmental fleet liaison within 24 hours of receiving notice that their license has been or will be revoked or suspended.
- 4.11 Drivers shall not operate District-owned or personal vehicles for District business when they are required to take medication, which may impair their ability to safely operate a moving vehicle. Drivers have an affirmative duty to report to their health care provider the fact that they are required to drive for District business and the type of vehicles that they are responsible for to enable the provider to give appropriate direction about the use of prescription medication and District driving tasks. Drivers must also report any restrictions and limitations to their supervisor when taking such medication.
- 4.12 All School District vehicles assigned for take home privileges are considered taxable fringe benefits. Employees with take home vehicle assignments must submit the Payroll Deduction for Employees Using School District Vehicle for Commuting form to Transportation to comply with IRS guidelines.
- 4.13 Smoking is prohibited in all District vehicles, without exception.

#### 5. TRANSPORTATION ALTERNATIVES

- 5.1 As an alternative to District-owned passenger vehicles, employees are encouraged to use the following modes of transportation, making decisions informed by cost-benefit analysis, personal safety, their department's policies and procedures, and practicality.
- 5.2 Mileage Reimbursement. The reimbursement rate for usage of personal vehicles for business-related purposes can be available to employees. In order to receive reimbursement, an employee should use an Employee Expense Reimbursement Form (SEH-195). Subject to departmental approval, mileage reimbursements are paid for by the employee's department.
- 5.3 Car Sharing. Administrative and/or passenger vehicle functionality may be accommodated through the District's car sharing program through the Department of Transportation Services. Departments can inquire more details of the program by contacting Transportation services.
- Taxi/Ride Sharing Service. Employees, upon approval of the department head or designee, may use a taxi or ride share service for emergency response or during regular working hours when use of such service is the most affordable and viable option, provided that the service used is licensed and legally able to operate in the Commonwealth. Employees should submit an Employee Expense Reimbursement Form (SEH-195) to their department head or designee to receive reimbursement for the costs incurred. Expenses incurred when using an unlawful taxi or ride sharing service shall not be eligible for reimbursement.
- 5.5 Mass Transportation. When possible and effective, employees are encouraged to take mass transportation

to conduct District business. Employees should contact their immediate supervisor to find out if the department provides SEPTA fare cards for employees to conduct District business. In the absence of department SEPTA fare cards, employees will be responsible for purchasing mass transportation fare and submitting an Employee Expense Reimbursement Form (SEH-195) along with the original purchase receipt to his/her manager in a timely manner.

#### 6. GENERAL GUIDELINES FOR USING DISTRICT VEHICLES

- 6.1 Vehicles for Official Use Only. District vehicles are school district property that should be used exclusively for official District business. District employees shall avoid any vehicle use that might result in or create the appearance of impropriety with regard to public perception concerning the misuse of District vehicles. Employees may not use District vehicles while off duty except for work-related activities designated by their department head.
- 6.2 Citizen complaints concerning driving habits such as speeding, recklessness, and/or other inappropriate behavior may lead to revocation of vehicle operating privileges or other appropriate personnel actions.
- 6.3 A District vehicle can be used to transport non-District employees if the transport is for business purposes. Non-District employees may not be transported in District-owned vehicles for non-business purposes without express written approval from the Department of Transportation Services.
- 6.4 Only District employees may operate District vehicles, unless a waiver has been granted by the COO based on the recommendation of the Office of Risk Management. Contract employees and unpaid interns may not operate District vehicles without express written approval from the Department of Transportation Services.
- 6.5 Operators of vehicles or equipment that require a special class of driver's license must possess the appropriate license prior to operating such vehicles or equipment. Those employees who possess a driver's license from another state must obtain a Pennsylvania driver's license within three months of their date of hire.
- 6.6 Unattended vehicles must be locked at all times, and must not have a key in the ignition.
- 6.7 District vehicles should not be taken outside of the City limits during the normal business hours unless required by legitimate business purposes with approval from the department. If a department approves vehicle take-home privileges for an emergency response employee who resides outside of the City (where permissible), that take-home approval shall be considered sufficient authorization for the employee to operate a vehicle outside of the City limits.
- 6.8 Employees are expected to maintain the exterior and interior cleanliness of vehicles. Misuse of vehicles as determined by Transportation that leads to the requirement of structural or other repairs may be charged back to the user department, whether the vehicle is rented or owned.
- 6.9 Departments will comply with Transportation's preventative maintenance program.

#### 7. AUTHORIZATION AND REQUIREMENTS TO OPERATE VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT

7.1 All employees who may be required to drive a vehicle for District business must possess a current and valid Pennsylvania driver's license. If an employee has reason to believe that their license may not be current and valid,

the employee shall notify their immediate supervisor and departmental fleet liaison within 24 hours. Departments with employees who may operate a District vehicle must first submit employee information to the Department of Transportation Services.

- 7.2 All departments shall provide employees' driver's license information to the Department of Transportation Services. This record must include a verified driver's license number and the employee ID number. A photocopy of the employee's driver's license shall be kept by the department in the employee's personnel file, as well as on file with the Department of Transportation Services.
- 7.3 Transportation will distribute, on a monthly basis, information about employees' driver's license statuses for each department. This information will consist of a listing of employees with expired, canceled, revoked, suspended, pending, or Photo ID licenses (E, C, R, S, P, or PI); a listing of employees who could not be matched with PennDOT data for some reason; and a listing of all drivers with a valid license. Each department is required to verify license standing monthly.
- 7.4 Any employee who is found to have an expired, canceled, revoked, or suspended photo ID license must be prevented from driving for District business. Employees operating District vehicles with expired, cancelled, revoked, or suspended driver's licenses may be subject to disciplinary action.
- 7.5 The monthly Driver's License Verification Report will be distributed electronically to all District departments via the department's fleet liaison for review and for prompt action to be taken regarding invalid drivers.
- 7.6 Employees with a history of two preventable accidents within a three-year period while using a District vehicle will be reviewed by their department for continued eligibility to drive a District vehicle, and will be subject to appropriate personnel actions.
- 7.7 Safety. The following safety standards shall be obeyed at all times with respect to District vehicle usage:
  - 7.7.1 Employees shall, at all times, operate vehicles and equipment in compliance with all applicable traffic laws, rules, and regulations.
  - 7.7.2 Employees shall not operate a motor vehicle while under the influence of alcohol or a controlled substance.
  - 7.7.3 Smoking is prohibited in all District vehicles, with no exceptions.
  - 7.7.4 Using cell phones without a hands-free device while operating a District vehicle is prohibited.
  - 7.7.5 Using any electronic device to read or text/write while operating a District vehicle in motion is prohibited.
  - 7.7.6 Wearing headphones/ear buds while operating a District vehicle is prohibited.

#### 7.8 <u>Insurance, Permits, and Registration</u>

- 7.8.1 No District vehicle or privately owned vehicle may be used for District business without valid inspection stickers.
- 7.8.2 All privately owned vehicles authorized for District business shall be properly registered and

insured in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania pursuant to Pennsylvania financial responsibility laws.

#### 7.9 Graphics, Painting, and Markings

- 7.9.1 All District vehicles shall have standardized markings and graphics. In instances where application of standardized markings and graphics would prevent employees from fulfilling departmental functions or jeopardize employee safety, departments may request a waiver from Transportation. The waiver must be unit and vehicle specific.
- 7.9.2 Requests for cosmetic changes to vehicles shall only be completed if operationally necessary, as determined by Transportation in consultation with the department.

#### 8. ACCIDENTS INVOLVING DISTRICT-OWNED VEHICLES

- 8.1 Accident information guides shall be placed in the glove compartment of every District vehicle. Departments shall contact Transportation to obtain replacement accident information guides.
- 8.2 All accidents or incidents, regardless of severity, involving District vehicles must be reported immediately by the driver to all three of the following entities in this order:
  - 8.2.1 Ensure your own safety and the safety of others
    - If you, your passengers, pedestrians, or individuals in other vehicles involved are injured and in need of medical attention, **IMMEDIATELY** call 911 to report the accident and ask for an ambulance;
    - Provide aid to anyone in need if you can.

### 8.2.2 Secure Vehicle and Utilize Hazard Signals/Warning Signs

- Turn on hazard signals;
- Only exit vehicle when it is safe to do so;
- Be mindful for your own safety and safety of others when exiting vehicles or conversing with other parties.
- Do not move the vehicle until you have a chance to take photos or until the police arrive, unless absolutely necessary to avoid a traffic hazard.

#### 8.2.3 Call 911, District Office(215-400-600), and ARI(1-800-227-2273) to Report Accident

- Call 911 and inform them of the accident. State location, time of accident, and brief description of accident and vehicles involved.
- Call School Police Office to report accident. Provide:
  - Your name and job title;
  - O Date and time of accident;
  - Accident location;

- Brief description;
- o Details of any known injuries/extent of injuries;
- o School District vehicle info and license plate number;
- Other vehicle(s) info and license plate number.
- Call Fleet Maintenance Service Provider to report accident. Provide:
  - o Your name and job title;
  - Date and time of accident:
  - Accident location;
  - o Brief description;
  - O Details of any known injuries/extent of injuries;
  - School District vehicle info and license plate number;
  - Other vehicle(s) info and license plate number.

#### 8.2.4 Complete the Report of Accident Form and Ensure All Applicable Information is Gathered

- Complete the entire form;
- Obtain all applicable information;
- Get names, addresses, and phone numbers of <u>ALL</u> drivers, passengers, and witnesses;
- Be as specific as possible when providing information (details of traffic signals, weather, your speed/speed limit, other driver inattention/use of phone, etc.);
- Make sure to report details of all passengers in each vehicle (obtain contact information and ask if any of them were injured);
- Obtain insurance information for all vehicles (insurance company name and policy number);
- Note weather conditions and any contributing factors/causes of the accident;
- Note police incident control number.

#### 8.2.5 Take Photographs

- Photos of all vehicles' location and position (photo entire scene/big picture and then vehicles individually);
- Photos of vehicle damage;
- Photos of skid marks, debris, etc.
- Photos of any property/non-vehicle damage
- Photos of traffic control devices;
- Photos of insurance documents of all involved if possible.
- Photos and make note of any potential surveillance cameras that you see which may have captured the incident.

#### 9. VEHICLE TRACKING SYSTEM (GPS)

- 9.1 Global positioning System (GPS) Tracking Systems will be installed on all District vehicles. The District reserves the right to install GPS for use in all District vehicles.
- 9.2 Employees should have no expectation of privacy for their physical location while operating a District vehicle. The District has the right to use GPS systems to monitor activity including but not limited to: excessive idling, excessive speeding, unauthorized trips, unauthorized stops, unauthorized weekend usage and any other improper usage of District vehicle.
- 9.3 Under no circumstances should a GPS unit be touched or altered by drivers. GPS has a feature that will notify Transportation if the GPS unit is tampered with or removed. If the GPS unit is removed or tampered with, the employee's Department Head will be notified, vehicle privileges may be suspended and the employee will be subject to the District's disciplinary process.

#### 9.4 System Functionality

- 9.4.1 It is important that the GPS Tracking System functions at all times while the vehicle is in operation in order for the system to be effective.
- 9.4.2 Unauthorized interference with GPS Tracking System including tampering, disabling, or damaging is strictly prohibited.
- 9.4.3 Any District employee found to be tampering with the GPS Tracking System will be held accountable for the damages and cost of repairs.

#### 9.5 Notice and Signed Acknowledgement

- 9.5.1 The District will provide written notice to all vehicle users explaining that a GPS Tracking System is installed in all District vehicles and is in use on a daily basis.
- 9.5.2 Each driver shall sign an acknowledgement form stating that they received the notice and understand the District's policy regarding GPS Tracking Systems.
- 9.5.3 Once the driver has signed this acknowledgement, no further acknowledgement is required absent material change to this policy or regulation.
- 9.5.4 Any driver hired after provision of the written notice as described above will receive written notice upon the start of employment.
- 9.5.5 Signed acknowledgement forms will be maintained by Transportation.
- 9.5.6 Additional notice will be provided to employees as follows:
  - 9.5.6.1 The substance of notice shall be included in the employee handbook.
  - 9.5.6.2 The Transportation website will also contain general information about the use of GPS Tracking Systems in District vehicles/buses.

#### 9.6 Access to GPS Tracking System Data

9.6.1 Access to data obtained by the GPS Tracking Systems will be protected by a confidential password.

9.6.2 Access to data obtained by the GPS Tracking Systems will be limited to individuals approved by the Department of Transportation Services

#### 9.7 Unauthorized Activities

9.7.1 Any unauthorized activities, such as excessive idling, excessive speeding, unauthorized trips, unauthorized stops, unauthorized weekend usage of vehicle, and any other improper use of District vehicle, may be subject to the District's disciplinary process.

#### 10. RULES FOR DISPOSITION OF PARKING TICKETS

- 10.1 Employees operating District vehicles are expected to observe and be held personally responsible for obeying all parking regulations.
- 10.2 Employees shall pay fines and late fees in a timely manner. Refusal to pay or accept responsibility for an outstanding violation will be subject to disciplinary action and/or loss of vehicle operating or parking privileges.

#### 11. RULES FOR RED LIGHT PHOTO VIOLATIONS

- 11.1 Employees operating District vehicles are expected to observe all traffic laws, and obedience to red light photo enforcement systems is imperative.
- 11.2 Employees shall pay fines and late fees in a timely manner. Refusal to pay an outstanding violation will be subject to disciplinary action and/or loss of vehicle operating or parking privileges.

#### 12. TOLL ROAD VIOLATIONS

- 12.1 Personnel operating District vehicles on toll roads are responsible for the payment of all cash toll fares.
- 12.2 Employees may request reimbursement from their department for tolls incurred while performing official duties. In order to receive reimbursement, an employee should submit a receipt for the toll and use an Employee Expense Reimbursement Form (SEH-195). Subject to departmental approval, toll reimbursements are to be paid for by an employee's department.
- 12.3 Employees shall not drive through an EZ-Pass toll lane without an active EZ-Pass transponder affixed to the vehicle. Employees are personally responsible for any violations and penalties incurred from driving through EZ-Pass lanes without a transponder, or any other toll evasion.
- 12.4 Notice of toll violations will be received by Transportation and forwarded to the responsible department. The fine and/or late fee must be paid in a timely manner by the employee responsible for operating the vehicle at the time the violation occurred. Refusal to pay an outstanding violation may result in disciplinary action.

#### 13. TAKE HOME VEHICLE ASSIGNMENT AND GUIDANCE

- 13.1 Take-home vehicle assignments are intended to provide transportation for employees who are required to travel multiple work locations as a part of their daily duties and to frequently respond to emergency situations from their residence. Take-home privileges should only be granted, but not guaranteed. At no time should a take-home vehicle be used as a means of compensation.
- 13.2 Take-home vehicle assignments shall be made based on availability and departmental prioritization.
- 13.3 Departments are responsible for developing their respective take-home assignment criteria. Departmental take-home assignment criteria must be submitted to the department's respective cabinet member for approval. Departments are responsible for managing all assignments, subject to the written approval of both the department head and the Department of Transportation Services.
- 13.4 Departments shall submit a memo to the Department of Transportation Services for approval with the assignment criteria, number of vehicles, vehicle numbers, and employees assigned take-home privileges. Departments shall submit these memos for Transportation's approval annually, and/or when changes occur.
- 13.5 Each department is responsible for notifying Transportation of any assignments or changes to assignments within 24 hours.
- 13.6 Eligibility for a take-home vehicle assignment shall be based upon job function, not title. The following recommendations may be considered by departments when developing take-home assignment criteria:
  - 13.6.1 Emergency Response the position has regular on-call status for emergency response. An emergency is defined as a situation that may result in physical harm or significant property damage.
  - 13.6.2 On-Call The employee is called out (after work hours or on weekends) on a frequent basis.
  - 13.6.3 Daily Changes of Worksites The employee's work location may change multiple times in a day.
  - 13.6.4 Condition and Suitability The employee's personal vehicle would not be appropriate for emergency response.
- 13.7 The School District of Philadelphia is not responsible for lost or damaged personal property left inside a District vehicle. Valuables should not be left in District vehicles when parked overnight at an Employee's residence. Unattended vehicles shall be locked at all times. Employees shall park District vehicles in a safe, secure, and legal location.
- 13.8 During vacations or any type of extended leave of four or more days, employees are encouraged to make the vehicle available for use by other departmental employees.

## 14. PRIORITIZATION OF VEHICLE ACQUISITIONS, MAINTENANCE, AND RELINQUISHMENTS

- 14.1 Prioritization of Vehicle Acquisition and Equipment
  - 14.1.1 The acquisition process is a collaborative effort, with departments articulating operational needs and Transportation identifying an appropriate vehicle (or designating specifications for one) that will provide an adequate level of functionality. The guiding principal for all acquisitions is to purchase task-appropriate vehicles that represent the best value for the District.
  - 14.1.2 For replacement vehicles, the rule of "one for one" is generally in effect; therefore, for each replacement vehicle requested, departments shall identify, by property number, the vehicle that will be turned in. Departments shall review the proposed vehicle for relinquishment and shall determine if an alternative vehicle should be replaced.
  - 14.1.3 Transportation will prioritize for replacement departmental vehicle and equipment classes for which daily vehicle targets have been established, pursuant to a service level agreement.
- 14.2 Prioritization of Funding for Vehicles and Equipment
  - 14.2.1 The Transportation acquisition budget is primarily funded through the General and Capital funds. However, grant funding is sometimes made available by various departments for vehicle purchases.
  - 14.2.2 When grant funding is available for replacement acquisitions, it is required that departments secure funds to cover life cycle costs for maintenance and fuel.
  - 14.2.3 When grant funding is available for approved new need acquisitions, funds for full life cycle costs, acquisition, maintenance, and fuel are required.
  - 14.2.4 No General Fund money shall be used to replace grant financed vehicles unless with the expressed consent of the COO and Transportation.
- 14.3 Purchasing Alternative Fuel and Fuel Efficient Vehicles. In accordance with local ordinance, Transportation, in cooperation with user departments, shall work to purchase fuel-efficient and lower polluting vehicles.
- 14.4 Vehicle and Equipment Relinquishments. Transportation maintains vehicles and equipment until they are no longer safe and operable. Relinquishment decisions are made solely by the Department of Transportation Services, with the appropriate level of consultation with user departments about the operational impact of relinquishment balanced against the cost of repair. Transportation shall communicate relinquishment decisions as far in advance as possible to ensure that affected departments have ample opportunity to develop contingency plans.

#### 15. DISCIPLINARY ACTION

- 15.1 Employees who are found to have violated the policies set forth in this Directive may be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination.
- 15.2 Employees who fail to follow the proper channels outlined in this Directive to address parking tickets, red light violations, toll violations, or other traffic violations will be subject to disciplinary action and may lose their privilege to operate District vehicles, park their personal vehicle in authorized zones or District-controlled offstreet lots, or use their personal vehicle for District business.

\*\*All criteria and exceptions must be approved by the Chief Operating Officer <u>and</u> the Department of Transportation Services

School District of Philadelphia Department of Transportation Services Non-Bus Fleet Services Frequently Asked Questions

## Q. How do I handle state inspections and preventative maintenance (fluid, oil change, wipers)?

All routine services can be performed by presenting a coupon to an authorized service location. Each coupon is created specifically for each vehicle. In other words, the vehicle information on the coupon and the vehicle must match before any job can be performed. If you have any questions, please contact ARI by calling 1-800-227-2273. ARI will evaluate the problem and advise the driver.

Updated authorized service locations will be made available to drivers in a separate document.

### Q. My SDP Vehicle is broken down and needs repair. What should I do?

In the event that the driver of a School District non-bus vehicle encounters mechanical failure or other problems, contact ARI 24/7 by calling 1-800-227-2273.

### **Instructions for dialing ARI**

On each individual card, you will have a "Card Number" that you will need before dialing. When you dial 1-800-227-2773, **press#2** for assistance. In that menu, you will select the following numbers based on what service you need:

- #1: Roadside Assistance
- #2: Window/Glass Repair
- #3: Accident Assistance
- #5: Assistance schedule preventative maintenance or repairs
- #6: Assistance with Heavy Duty Vehicles

### Q. I need roadside assistance, e.g. flat fire. What do I do?

In the event that the driver of a School District non-bus vehicle has a flat tire or requires any other roadside assistance, contact ARI 24/7 by calling 1-800-227-2273.

### Q. I was just involved in a car accident, what do I do?

All School District drivers need to follow the following 5-step process after an accident occurs.

- Step 1: Ensure your own safety and the safety of others
- Step 2: Secure vehicle and utilize hazard signals/warning signs.
- Step 3: Call 911, School Safety (215-400-6000) and ARI (1-800-227-2773) to report accident.
- Step 4: Complete the report of accident form and ensure all applicable information is gathered.
- Step 5: Take photographs.

More detailed post-accident protocols can be found in the employee handbook.

## Q. I have been pulled over by the police for a traffic violation, what do I do? As well as, I received a parking ticket, what do I do?

There are two types of traffic violations that a driver may receive while operating a school district

- 1. A traffic violation that is handed to you by a Police Officer
  - a. For example: any tickets given by a police officer after being pulled over, such as speeding ticket, reckless driving, driving under influence, etc
  - b. Employee is fully responsible for paying for tickets/violations within the timeframe given by the officer.

#### 2. A traffic violation that is not-handed to you by a Police Officer

- a. For example: parking tickets, red light camera violation, EZ-Pass Toll Violation, etc
- b. Transportation Department will initially and temporarily cover the cost of violations to avoid any late charges. However, employees that are responsible for tickets will be billed and be expected to repay the full cost back to Transportation.
- c. Any non-paying employees will be reported to the Head of the Department and may be subject to disciplinary action.

### Q. I need to fuel up the vehicle, what do I do?

Any vehicles owned by the School District of Philadelphia can be fueled at one of the approved fueling site locations listed in your employee handbook.

**Q.** I had to fuel up the vehicle at a regular gas station with my own money, what do I do? It is your responsibility to make sure the vehicle is fueled up at one of the approved fueling stations before your trip and return the vehicle with the full tank.

Any cost associated with retrieving vehicle due to lack of fuel in the vehicle will be charge to the employee responsible for the action.

### Q. What should I do if I have lost my vehicle keys or locked them in the vehicle?

Drivers will notify the Department of Transportation 215-400-4350. The cost of the replacement key is the responsibility of the employee responsible for the action.

If you are locked out of assigned vehicle, call ARI by calling 1-800-227-2273 to seek roadside assistance.

### Q. I drove through the EZPass toll without paying, what do I do?

A camera has already captured an image of your license plate; a Violation Notice will be mailed automatically to the School District of Philadelphia. The SDP employee will still be responsible for the ticket violation payment. Refer more detail in traffic violation question in this FAQ.

### Q. When can I allow my spouse, kids, or pets to ride in or drive a city vehicle?

Risk Management Policy requires that only SDP employees should occupy SDP vehicles. The policy states that a vehicle shall be used only for the conduct of official SDP business and that vehicles cannot be used for transporting family members, any other persons unrelated to the conduct of SDP business or pets.

## Q. If a non-SDP employee is attending the same meeting that I am for SDP business; can they ride in the vehicle with me?

Yes, as long as the SDP employee is driving the vehicle.

## Q. How does the SDP insure its vehicles? What do I show to the police officer if I am pulled over?

The SDP self-insures SDP vehicles for liability under the terms of the Government Immunity Act. Self-insurance certificates must be kept in the glove compartment. Please request a copy from your Department's fleet liaison if your vehicle does not have a copy.

If you have any other questions about operating school district non-bus vehicles, please contact the Department of Transportation at 215-400-4350 or e-mail to transoperations@philasd.org.

## **FUEL SITE LOCATIONS**

Location	Department	Fuel Type	Hours of Operation
24th &Wolf	Police 1 dist.	No Lead	7 Days-24 Hours
11th & Wharton	Police 3&4 dist.	No Lead	7 Days-24 Hours
8200 Enterprise	Water	Diesel and No Lead	Restricted (Gate) Mon-Fri 7:30AM - 3PM
International Airport	Commerce	Diesel and No Lead	Mon-Fri 8:00AM- 3:30PM
51st&Gray	Fleet	Diesel	Mon-Fri 7:00AM- 3:30PM
55th & Pine	Police 18 dist.	No Lead	7 Days-24 Hours
61st&Thompson	Police 19 dist.	No Lead	7 Days-24 Hours
25th & Tasker	School	Diesel and No Lead	7 Days-24 Hours
Girard & Montgomery	Police 26 dist.	No Lead	7 Days-24 Hours
21st & Pennsylvania	Police 9 dist.	No Lead	7 Days-24 Hours
26th & Glennwood	Streets	Diesel and No Lead	Mon-Fri 7:00AM- 10:00PM
7800 Penrose	Water	Diesel and No Lead	Mon-Fri 6:00AM- 6:00PM
3900 Richmond	Water	Diesel and No Lead	Restricted (Gate) Mon-Fri 7:00AM - 3PM
Delaware & Wheatsheaf	Fleet	Diesel and No Lead	Mon-Fri 6:00AM- 5:00PM
100 E. Hunting Park	Fleet	Diesel and No Lead	7 Days-24 Hours
29th & Cambria	Water	Diesel and No Lead	Mon-Fri 8:00AM- 4:30PM
22nd & Hunting Park	Police 39 dist.	No Lead	7 Days-24 Hours
Harbinson & Levick	Police 15 dist.	No Lead	7 Days-24 Hours
Broad & Champlost	Police 35 dist.	No Lead	7 Days-24 Hours
Germantown & Haines	Police 14 dist.	No Lead	7 Days-24 Hours
Ridge & Cinnaminson	Police 5 dist.	No Lead	7 Days-24 Hours
Domino & Umbria	Streets	Diesel and No Lead	Mon-Fri 7:00AM- 11:00PM
State & Ashburner	Fleet	Diesel and No Lead	7 Days-24 Hours
Academy & Redlion	Police 8 dist.	No Lead	7 Days-24 Hours
Busleton & Bowler	Police 7 dist.	No Lead	7 Days-24 Hours
17th & Montgomery	Police 22&23 dist.	No Lead	7 Days-24 Hours
Germantown & Carpenter	Fire eng. 9	Diesel and No Lead	7 Days-24 Hours
3rd & Spring Garden	Fire Admin Building	No Lead	7 Days-24 Hours
Fox & Abbottsford	Water	Diesel and No Lead	Mon-Fri 7:00AM- 5:00PM
4040 Whitaker	Fleet	Diesel and No Lead	Mon-Fri 6:00AM- 11:30PM
28th & Thompson	Fire end. 34	Diesel	7 Days-24 Hours
Cottman & Loretta	Fire eng. 71	Diesel	7 Days-24 Hours
8205 Roosevelt Blvd	Fire eng. 18	Diesel	7 Days-24 Hours
711 S Broad	Fire eng. 01	Diesel	7 Days-24 Hours
4th & Snyder	Fire eng. 53	Diesel	7 Days-24 Hours
Chamoniux & Ford Road	Fairmount Park	Diesel and No Lead	Mon-Fri 7:00AM- 3:30PM
63rd & Lancaster	Fire eng. 54	Diesel	7 Days-24 Hours
48th & Parkside	Streets	Diesel	Mon-Fri 7:00AM- 6:00PM
10th & Cherry	Fire eng. 20	Diesel	7 Days-24 Hours
4th & Girard	Fire eng. 29	Diesel	7 Days-24 Hours
82nd & Tinicum	Fire eng. 69	Diesel	7 Days-24 Hours
52nd & Willows	Fire eng. 68	Diesel	7 Days-24 Hours
Foulkrod & Darrah	Fire eng. 14	Diesel	7 Days-24 Hours
Busleton & Bowler	Fire eng. 62	Diesel	7 Days-24 Hours
812 Hendrix	Fire eng. 58	Diesel	7 Days-24 Hours
Chelten & Bayton	Fire eng. 19	Diesel	7 Days-24 Hours
3031 Grays Ferry	Fire eng. 47	Diesel	7 Days-24 Hours
Belgrade & Ontario	Fire eng. 28	Diesel	7 Days-24 Hours
13th & Shunk	Fire eng. 49	Diesel	7 Days-24 Hours
24th & Ritner	Fire eng. 60	Diesel	7 Days-24 Hours
Z-Till & Klillel	incong. 00	Diesei	1 Days-27 Hours

Location	Department	Fuel Type	Hours of Operation
Northeast Airport	Commerce	Diesel	Restricted Mon-Fri 7:30AM- 3:30PM
Academy & Comly	Fire eng. 22	Diesel	7 Days-24 Hours
Ridge & Cinnaminson	Fire eng. 39	Diesel	7 Days-24 Hours
7790 Dungan Rd	Police	No Lead	Restricted
Park & Cambria	Fire eng. 50	Diesel	7 Days-24 Hours
5931 Old York Road	Fire eng. 51	Diesel	7 Days-24 Hours
43rd & Market	Fire eng. 05	Diesel	7 Days-24 Hours
Belgrade & Huntingdon	Fire eng. 06	Diesel	7 Days-24 Hours
5332 Rising Sun Ave	Fire eng. 61	Diesel	7 Days-24 Hours
63rd & Passyunk	Streets	Diesel	7 Days-24 Hours

Printed: October 15th, 2018